ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 13, 2006
1:11 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Jay Ranras, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Ral ph Samuel s, Co-Chair
Representative Jim El ki ns
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representative Kurt O son

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative Mary Kapsner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al l menbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 29
Requesting the conm ssioner of natural resources to conplete a
managenment plan for the area enconpassing the Pebble copper
deposit and requesting a report to the |egislature.
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

Bl LL: HCR 29
SHORT TI TLE:. PEBBLE COPPER DEPOSI T MANAGEMENT PLAN
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HAVKER

02/ 01/ 06 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 01/ 06 (H RES

02/ 10/ 06 (H RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 10/ 06 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 10/ 06 (H M NUTE( RES)

02/ 13/ 06 (H RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

ED FOGELS, Deputy Conmi ssioner
Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR)

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -1- February 13, 2006



Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regardi ng HCR 29.

DI CK MYLIUS, Acting Director

D vision of Mning, Land and Vter

Departnent of Natural Resources

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regardi ng HCR 29.

GLEN ALSWORTH, Mayor

Lake and Peni nsul a Bor ough

Port Al sworth, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HCR 29.

TREFON ANGASQN, Contractor

Nort hern Dynasty

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of the process of
assessing the potential mning operations of Northern Dynasty.

GREG O CLARAY, Commi ssioner

Departnment of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HCR 29.

RALPH ANGASON, Presi dent
Al aska Peni nsul a Cor poration
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HCR 29.

MR. SCOTT BRENNAN, Director

Al askans for Responsi ble M ning

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 29.

WASSI LLI E | TUKSI K, President

Al eknagi k Tri bal Counsel

Al eknagi k, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HCR 29.

LI SA REI MERS
IIiama, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HCR 29.

El LEEN ZAl SER

Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 29.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 2- February 13, 2006



ELEANOR JOHNSON, Teacher
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HCR 29.

MARTHA ANELON

I'Iiamma, Al aska

I I'i amma Pebbl e Devel opnent

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HCR 29.

REPRESENTATI VE CARL MOSES

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered a question about a bridge in
Nondal t on, Al aska.

DAN OBERLATZ, Owner

Al aska Al pi ne Adventures

Lake C ark, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 29.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

COCHAIR JAY RAMRAS called the House Resources Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 1:11:19 PM Represent ati ves
Crawford, LeDoux, Ranras, Seaton and O son were present at the
call to order. Representatives Gatto, Sanuels and Kapsner
arrived as the neeting was in progress. Representati ves M ke

Hawker and Carl Mbses were al so present.

HCR 29- PEBBLE COPPER DEPOSI T MANAGEMENT PLAN

CO CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the only order of business would
be HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO 29, Requesting the
comm ssioner of natural resources to conplete a nmanagenent plan
for the area enconpassing the Pebble copper deposit and
requesting a report to the | egislature.

CO CHAI R RAMRAS questioned the fiscal note for HCR 29 and asked
for clarification fromthe Departnent of Natural Resources.

ED FOCELS, Deputy Commi ssioner, Departnent of Natural Resources
(DNR), said he did not have it.

CO- CHAIR RAVRAS said he was enbarrassed because he had clearly
asked for it.

1:15: 07 PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 3- February 13, 2006



MR. FOGELS said DNR is mandated to be the coordinating agency
for large mne projects. There is a large projects group within
DNR that coordinates all state agencies that are involved in
permtting large mne projects. The agencies include the
Department of Environnmental Conservation, DNR, Al aska Departnent
of Fish & Gane, Department of Transportation & Public
Facilities, Departnment of Comerce, Comunity, & Economc
Devel opnent, and Departnent of Law He said there is a core
group of state officials that have been working on |arge mne
projects for many years. He spoke of mnes that the group has

wor ked on. He said the group is a huge body of expertise with
advanced degrees and experience. A typical l|arge m ne project,
such as Pogo, wll take about 50 state and federal permts, and

it is a huge job to coordinate the permts. The pernmts cover a
range of issues, including ensuring that reclamation noney is
set aside, structures are technically sound, air quality is
mai nt ai ned, waste is disposed properly, and nuch nore. An
application for such a project may take up several bookshel ves.

1:18:19 PM

MR. FOGELS said the mning team is in charge of permtting,
enforcenment, nonitoring and conpliance. He added that federa
permts typically require an Environmental |[|npact Statenent
(EI'S), and the state has learned how to dovetail wth that
process. There are at least two rounds of public neetings and
three rounds of public involvenent in a typical EI'S process,
including data gathering and alternative suggestions. The
public is noticed after the alternatives are presented and
anal yzed. A draft EIS is produced and put out for public
noti ce. It is often thousands of pages long, and permts are

not usually witten until that phase is over. He envisions that
this process would be followed for the Pebble mne, and it would
be a nultiple-year process.

1:21: 24 PM

DICK MYLIUS, Acting Director, Dvision of Mning, Land and
Water, Departnment of Natural Resources, said the planning
process begins with public neetings for identifying issues and
concerns, which is simlar to the scoping process of an EIS
The second step is collecting data based on issues that were
uncover ed. He said he envisions using the data collection that

wll be used as part of both the |large mne and EI S process, "so
we don't envision a mpjor data collection effort just for the
| and use plan.” He said the next step is developing plan

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 4- February 13, 2006



alternatives with sonme sort of public involvenent, which is not
al ways public neetings. The preferred alternative is then
chosen, the draft plan is fornulated, and public review begins

Public neetings may be held, and then a final plan is adopted
that reflects changes from the public comment period. The plan
can be appealed to the comm ssioner and finally to court. One
| and use plan has been appealed to the court |evel, he said.

1: 23: 51 PM
CO- CHAI R RAMRAS asked about the $400, 000 fiscal note.

MR. MYLIUS said the process would be run concurrently and a
separate docunent would be produced. He said DNR does not do a
| and use plan as part of the large mne process. The Nati ona
Environnental Policy Act of 1969 process "is a very 1long
detail ed docunent, and this would nore summarize a |ot of that
information, or conpile into kind of one planning docunment, and
we'd have to give separate public—+he process would be conbined
with this but we would have to address public conments separate
from thi s—er maybe not necessarily separate, but there would be
different issues the public would raise. For exanple, we m ght
get into—the plan m ght address nore of sone of the uses on sone
of the adjacent land that may not actually get addressed in the
EIS in as great a detail...It's going to be a separate public
comenti ng process. It will occur concurrently but we'll have
to respond to all those comrents comng specific to the plan,
and one of the reasons for the fiscal note, is that we envision,
with this process in particular, that it would be a fairly
contentious process and we'd get an awful |ot of public coments
we woul d need to address through the whole process.”

1: 25: 42 PM

CO CHAIR RAMRAS said, "This is where you ve lost ne." He said
he wants to understand the fiscal note, and he asked for a side-
by-side conparison of the two processes to be faxed to his
of fice in the next hour.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about the last lines of HCR 29
regarding the commi ssioner's conclusion on the appropriateness
of classifying the area for mneral devel opnent. He asked what
the alternative classifications nay be. "If we would go through
a land wuse planning process that reclassifies this mning
district for sonmething else, and we have permtted and
encouraged mining clainse and expenditures to delineate that
anount, are we |ooking at a takings clain®" He nentioned the

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 5- February 13, 2006



coal bed nethane |eases in the Honer area, where the state had
to pay noney based on potential, recoverabl e resources.

MR, MLIUS said generally management plans do not end in
whol esal e reclassifications. Area plans are the broad |evel of
pl anni ng, he said, and they deal with lands of one to fifteen

mllion acres, and lay out the general nanagenent intent. He
said the Bristol Bay Area Plan was revised last year, and a
large part of the clains area is in designated m nerals. A
managenent plan is a step-down that is nore focused on a snaller
area and gets into greater detail. He noted that as a genera

rule, a managenent plan will not change the overall intent of
the area plan, so "we don't envision, through a managenent pl an,

that we would do a whol esale reclassification.”" He said even if

DNR does do a whol esale reclassification, all state land is open
to mnerals under state law unless it is specifically closed by
the |egislature. He said even if the area is classified as
recreation, it is still, under statute, open to mneral entry.
He added that the conm ssioner can only close up to 640 acres of
land from mneral entry, "and this is obviously a lot |arger

than 640 acres.” He said reclassification mght create nore
restrictions on how the area is mned, but there could not be a
prohi bition on mning. Regardi ng the takings issue, "there are

valid mning clains out there, so no matter what we did through
| and use planning, or even no matter what the |egislature did,
there are still valid existing mining clains there, and even if
we closed the area to mneral entry, any mneral closing order
done by either DNR or even by the legislature is always subject
to valid existing rights, and so the existing mning clains
woul d be considered a valid existing right.” DNR could not
prohi bit any devel opnent of the mning clainms, but it could nake
adm nistrative restrictions. He said the |egislature would have
the authority to take away the mning rights, but there m ght be
a takings claim against it. He added that the state actually
| eased an oil and gas area in Kachemak Bay, and the |egislature
closed it and a takings claimwas “advanced”.

1: 31: 43 PM

COCHAIR RAMRAS renminded DNR that he wants a side-by-side
expl anat i on.

1:32:44 PM
GLEN ALSWORTH, Mayor, Lake and Peninsula Borough, said the

people in his borough depend on clean water and good fish and
are not willing to sacrifice that, "but | conme personally from

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 6- February 13, 2006



the stance that devel opment and environnent can coexist if it's

done right." He said he does not "buy into no-net-loss,"” and he
wants to "buy into net gain." He said, "W can enhance and cone
out ahead whenever we do projects.” He said he has been very
pl eased to experience "the largest public process” that he has
ever been involved in, regarding the Pebble mne proposal. He
added that he has never seen any agency or any entity cone in
with such an incredible process of public involvenent. He said
his community on Lake Cark has had several neetings, and he
really appreciates that. He said his villages are either going
to go to work or die. The long-term effect of no economc

opportunity creates hopel essness, helplessness and depression.
He noted that people aren't worried about where to spend next
year's vacation, they are trying to figure out how to pay the

sewer bill. He said he is not saying that mining is the answer,
"I am saying that we need to allow the state to allow economc
devel opment in sone form or another in our area." "If we deny
this, our villages wll continue to die." He said school

enrol | ment has declined due to an out mgration.
1:36: 20 PM

MR. ALSWORTH said not to change operating rules mdstream when
projects cone along. He flies to Russia often, and it is
difficult to do business there because there is no set standard.
The process is inportant no matter what the outcone. There are
saf eguards and foresight so when the facts are there residents
can make deci sions on supporting or not supporting the project.

1: 37: 49 PM

MR. ALSWORTH said he grew up in Port Alsworth and the comrunity
has grown from 13 people to over 100 people in 50 years. He
said there are 7 people on the borough assenbly representing
1,600 to 1,700 people. He said the next neeting with the ful
assenbly will be on February 21, and HCR 29 wll be on the
agenda for discussion and public testinony. He said he will
report back to the commttee after that.

CO CHAIR RAMRAS asked if the nenbers of the borough assenbly
have any econom c relationship with Northern Dynasty.

MR. ALSWORTH said he does not know about others, but he hinself
has an air service that has flown Northern Dynasty and ot hers.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if he is representing the borough or
j ust speaking as an individual.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -7- February 13, 2006



MR. ALSWORTH said he is representing the borough today.
1:40: 36 PM

TREFON ANGASON, Contractor, Northern Dynasty, said he serves on
several boards in the Bristol Bay region, and he has been
involved in Native issues. He noted that he canme from a funera
and borrowed a four-wheeler, which took him to the |ocal fuel

depot where he needed noney. He said comunities are cash
dependent, "and it could be because we are a victim of our own
success. " He said, "W have fought for years to inprove the
quality of life, and...quality of life has come in." The need
for cash cane with it. He said it was too cold to gather wood,
so people are dependent on oil. He has a contract with Northern
Dynasty who hired him to connect the conpany to the people and
to perform outreach to the communities. He said he doesn't
pronote the nmine "or anything else." He said he will withhold
his judgnment wuntil it can be shown that the mne can be

devel oped safely. He left his job as the vice president of the
Bristol Bay Native Corporation to work for Northern Dynasty
because the Kvichak River in the area has not had any

escapenment. The Al aska Departnent of Fish & Ganme has desi gnated
it as a river of concern, he said. Now Northern Dynasty is
doi ng studies and spending mllions of dollars to find out what
happened to that fishery, because it wll be blaned for the
pr obl ens. He said when he was on the Board of Fisheries he
tried to get the board "to at I|east examne [the Kvichak
River]," and there was just a caneo fly-over, but there was no

research—=no white-collared jackets running around the streans
in the dead of winter checking out the quality of the water and
the quality of the snolt the way that Northern Dynasty is doing
t oday. " He said he thinks that Northern Dynasty should go
t hrough the process, and the federal governnent has done well to
protect his interests. He added that the National Environnenta
Policy Act of 1969 has prohibited poor m ning operations.

1:46: 10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said the information is powerful and he
under stands the negative consequences of either doing sonething
or nothing. He said he was aware that the Kvichak River did not
have a proper escapenent, and that river needs to be assessed
i nstead of the "whole process.”

1: 48: 19 PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 8- February 13, 2006



GREG O CLARAY, Comm ssioner, Departnent of Labor and Workforce
Devel opnent, said he has been to a neeting with Northern Dynasty
officials and addressed the governor's desire to enploy
Al askans. He said the conpany was receptive and has gone out of
their way to hire Al askans. He said there were 609 enployees
and 75 percent were Al aska residents, many from the Bristol Bay
area. He said it is evident why his departnent is interested in

the mning project. People in the villages need to have sone
hope. He noted that everyone 1is cash dependent, and
Representative Elkins operated a Dbar in Ketchikan and
under st ands cash. "Any enployer that conmes through the door
that's willing to invest in the local hire...is someone that |
think we owe, at least, a nmutual trust to assist themin their
process," he said. He said he is not here for or against the

resol ution. He stated that the resolution requires nore del ay,
and "any delay in bringing prosperity to that region to those
villagers, in nmy opinion, is not worth your tinme and effort."
This resolution has caused the creation of jobs for |obbyists.
He said not to put up a barrier to this conpany for the project.

1:52: 41 PM

RALPH ANGASON, President, Al aska Peninsula Corporation, said the
Al aska Peninsula Corporation is the |argest adjacent |andowner
to the Pebble deposit and is made up of five villages. He
warned that there is a new threat to "our survival" and the
survival of the Bristol Bay region, and "that threat is in the
form of HCR 29. This resolution is nothing nore than a
pandering to special interests that are rich and fanous, and
powerful outside interests that do not have a stake in the
econom c¢ future and potential of the Pebble deposit." He said
the deposit is the richest in the world. MIlions of dollars
have been spent by private interests in studying the deposit and
the mne feasibility, which includes studies of the biota and
culture of the area. "The private interests will use the |and
only as a playground, proposed to re-study, re-plan, to |lock up
all of it for their own personal pleasures,”" he stated. He said
that if HCR 29 is passed, the Bristol Bay Mnagenent Plan w |
be neani ngl ess. The mllions of dollars in studies wll be
wasted, and DNR will have to "carve Pebble fromits foundation
as part of the Bristol Bay Plan's fabric to spend still nore
nmoney, which this tine will be the state's noney," he added.
The research for new sources of power will cone to a screeching
halt, he said, and the very real potential econonm c devel opnent
to the region wll becone a pipedream The state will waste
mllions nore on studies that could be used for roads and power
in the region, "so that the rich and powerful can conme and play

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 9- February 13, 2006



for a few weeks a year, and |eave, and |eave nothing for our
sharehol ders to purchase fuel at over $5.00 a gallon." He said
youth will continue to |eave the region because there is no
opportunity. "The problem we are told, is that the Bristol Bay
Managenment Plan contenplates only 25 percent of the riches at
Pebble and are now believed to exist. To nme that is not a
problem it is an opportunity.” He asked the conmittee to wait
and see if the mne is even possible under existing |law and
t echnol ogy. He said the Alaska Peninsula Corporation has taken
a wait and see approach. "W do not tear up its plan and carve
out a new reginme for the purpose of |ocking up the riches DNR do
not think existed. Please give us a chance," he concl uded.

1: 56: 50 PM

MR. SCOIT BRENNAN, Director, Alaskans for Responsible M ning,
said he has taught environnental science and resource policy.
He also wote a textbook on the topic, giving him a unique
opportunity to study resource devel opnent proposals, projects,
and inpacts—both positive and negative—all around the world.
Al askans for Responsible Mning is a coalition of nonprofit
organi zations, and its mssion is to ensure that the mning
industry in Alaska neets the four criteria set forth by forner
Governor Jay Hammond for responsible resource devel opnent. A
profitable, job-creating project may not necessarily benefit the
state, according the Governor Hammond, he said, and a project
must neet four criteria: it nust be environnentally sound; it
must pay its own way; it must be supported by nost Al askans; and
it rmust provide the constitutionally mandated naxi mum benefit to
all Al askans, not just to a select few M. Brennan said he
supports HCR 29 because it exenplifies the oversight role of the
| egislature and its role of providing the citizen voice. The
proposed Pebble mne is unparalleled in size, type and |ocation,
he said, and it is only 10 percent of the total clainms in the
area. The geochem stry poses a higher risk, he added.

2:01: 06 PM

MR. BRENNAN said the Bristol Bay plan was updated a few years
ago, and, since then, there has been a huge increase in the size
of Pebble itself and the sanme increase in the surrounding area.
There are risks associated with open pit cyanide |each sulfide
m nes, he warned. He read a quote witten by Northern Dynasty:
"Unexpected environmental damage from spills, accidents, and
severe acts of nature, such as earthquakes, are risks which may
not be fully insurable and, if catastrophic, could nean the
total |oss of shareholder equity."” The state of Montana has

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -10- February 13, 2006



banned open pit cyanide leach mning of gold and silver, he
said, and in 1997, Wsconsin put a tenporary hold on sulfide
mnes until one had operated for 10 years wthout adverse
ef fects. He noted that the ban still stands because the state
has not been able to docunent a mne that fulfilled those
requirenents. M. Brennan read from a Northern Dynasty report:
"Northern Dynasty's nmnagenent may not be subject to U S. |ega

process. As Canadian citizens and residents, certain of
Northern Dynasty's directors and officers may not subject
thenmselves to U S. legal proceedings.” Recovery on judgnents

i ssued by courts may be difficult or inpossible, he said. Based
on those statenents, he asked the legislature to play the
oversight role and ensure that the closest scrutiny is applied
to the Pebble project.

2:04: 06 PM

CO CHAI R SAMUJELS asked who nade up the menbership of the group

MR. BRENNAN said nenbership is public record and is nade up of

19 organi zations, including the Bristol Bay Alliance, Kachenak
Bay Conservation Society, Al aska WI|derness Recreation and
Tourism  Associ ation, Nort hern Cent er, Sout heast Al aska
Conservation Council, Indigenous Environmental Network, Center

for Science and Public Participation, and others.
CO CHAI R SAMJELS asked if the group supported any m nes.

MR. BRENNAN said, "Absolutely." He said there are mnes in
Al aska that are doing things well. He said his group points to
best practices, and it uses those as exanples that could be
applied nore broadly. He said the Red Dog m ne does a great job
with Native hire; Geens Creek has an innovative reclamation
pl an; and Fort Knox has an outstanding record of water quality
control. He noted that the group actively nonitors mnes by
pointing out best practices and areas where inprovement is
called for.

CO CHAIR SAMUJELS asked M. Brennan if he would have sat in the
same chair and said we need nore permtting when the Red Dog
m ne was bei ng devel oped, or any individual mne. "Do you think
the process in Alaska for permtting mnes is broken?"

MR. BRENNAN said he thinks there could be statew de inprovenent

to enhance the benefit of the mning industry to the state and
reduce the risk to other businesses and downstream users.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -11- February 13, 2006



2:06:28 PM

CO CHAIR SAMJELS said he doesn't know if open-pit mning is an
abom nation or if Northern Dynasty will ever build the mne, "or
if I want them to build this mne," but if the process needs
fixing, it should be done for the entire state, and not pick and
choose.

CO CHAIR RAMRAS asked if M . Brennan has an economc
relationship with Bob GIlamor Northern Dynasty.

MR. BRENNAN said that M. GIllam has contributed, but it has
been | ess than 5 percent of the group's annual budget.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked it the group existed when other
Al aska m nes were permtted.

MR. BRENNAN said the group is only four-years old and staffed
even nore recently.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said nearly everything has a side effect,
so what does responsi ble m ning nmean?

MR. BRENNAN said the group adopted forner Governor Hammond's
work on what is environnentally sound. He said both forner
governors Hi ckel and Hammond have said that the mining industry
is not paying fair narket value, especially today when netal
prices are at record highs. He said he wouldn't want to be the
arbitrator of what is responsible, but have the |egislature and
DNR use Governor Hammond criteria instead of the blunt tool of
| obs. He said this issue should becone the foundation of a
broader, statew de dial ogue on that question.

2:09: 27 PM

CO- CHAI R RAMRAS said CGovernor's Hammond's legacy will remain for
generati ons.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he appreciates citizens working
together for best practices in mning, it is adnmrable and
necessary. He asked how requiring a detailed managenent plan
separate fromthe permtting process, gets to the advancenent of
best practices.

2:10: 34 PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -12- February 13, 2006



MR. BRENNAN answered that this comrittee hearing enables a
conversation of best practice. He said there is a precedent for
managenent plans being conducted prior to permtting, wthin
exi sting managenent plans, for nuch |esser projects. He said if
Hat cher Pass deserves that treatnent, the Pebble mne certainly
does. It sounded like DNR would be able to run the process
concurrently with the permtting process.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how best practices get incorporated
into a land use plan that are not incorporated in the mning
permtting process.

2:13:25 PM

MR. BRENNAN said there is a potential for a conflict of interest
during the permtting process, and he noted a mnmenorandum of
understanding between DNR and Northern Dynasty to expedite
conpletion of the pernmt process. Perhaps there is a
predeterm ned conclusion, he said, and the concern is anplified
because Northern Dynasty pays DNR to expedite permtting. He
stated that DNR can't conduct the oversight for itself, and the
| egi sl ature shoul d pay cl oser attention.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked how nmuch tine the organization
spends on the Pebble project.

2:15:18 PM

MR. BRENNAN said he is the one full-tinme enployee, and about 20-
25 percent of his time is spent on the Pebble m ne.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked what M. Brennan does regarding
ot her m nes.

MR. BRENNAN said that all work is done by invitation of a
community group. He noted that the Association of Village
Council Presidents invited him to conme to Akiak for a public
forum He said he provided information and gave the comunity
tools for protecting other resources.

2:16: 38 PM

WASSI LLI E | TUKSI K, President, Aleknagik Tribal Counsel, said he
is also on the city council and the village corporation board.
He is fromthe village of Al eknagik, which is a gateway to Wod-
Ti kchi k Park—the | argest state park in the country. He said he
was the first chair of the Wod-Ti kchik nmanagenent council.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -13- February 13, 2006



There are 48 lodges in the park and all enployees are white
There are young nmen with six-pack boat |icenses in the village,
"but they don't get hired,” he said. He said there are 14 young
men sitting in the village without jobs who are certified as

heavy equi pnment operators. He said they have taken state
training prograns, but they are sitting in the village with no
j obs. Lodges don't hire Natives, he stated, and he has called
the departnment of |abor and was told that they can hire anybody
they want. He said [enployees] at Lake Cdark and Katnai
National Parks are all white. "We desperately need economc
devel opnment in the Bristol Bay region,” he opined. He added

that he is a drift net troller in Bristol Bay, and in the recent
years, every tine the fish hit, the Anmerican processors put on a
pound limt. "They let you watch the fish go by at 60 cents a
pound. You can't hardly make a living," he said. He nmentioned
flying over what was once a village with an airport and a
school, and it was conpletely dark. The people have noved away
because there are no jobs. He noted that gas is $6.60 gallon,
making it difficult to make a living by fishing. "W\
desperately need sone kind of econom c developnent in Bristol
Bay, " he concl uded.

2:20:31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked why |odge owners are discrimnating
or if Natives Alaskans are not willing to do the work.

MR, ITUKSIK said the |odges hire people from out of state, "and
they don't need the Natives."

2:21: 16 PM

LI SA REIMERS, Iliama, said she doesn't have a nmaster's degree
and is not enployed by Northern Dynasty. She noted that she
lives 15 mles away fromthe mne and that the proposed road is
on her land, "so we are mmjor stakeholders."” "As | eaders of
Iliamma Natives Limted, we were skeptical when Northern Dynasty
first came in.” She said "we" would like to protect the
environnent but need to be open-mnded because comerci al
fishing has declined due to farmed fish. She said every year
hopes are high for comrercial fishing, but it costs noney to
fish and nost people cannot afford to "go down there anynore".
She said her nother owns a |odge but can't conpete with other
| odges because she cannot afford a $1 million airplane for the
fi sher nmen. She said her nother is conpeting with the high-end
mar ket but is trying to reach the | ower-end nmarket.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -14- February 13, 2006



M5. REI MERS expressed concern about the survey that was done
because only conmunities that were 70 mles away from the
proposed mne were included. Iliama was not included in the
survey, and she asked who paid for a previous presentation. She
reported that she doesn't have "a lot of noney, we don't have a
billionaire backing us up." She said everyone is worried about
payi ng $5.00 per gallon for fuel and are worried about how to
sustain thensel ves. She asked about how to diversify the area's
econony. She said the state will do a good job making sure this
mne is safe, and if it can be safe, "we are l|looking at it,
because what other options do we have?" She said certain
parties stopped a bridge connecting Iliama to Nondalton, and
lives have been lost trying to cross the river. She said the
process for Northern Dynasty should continue. She said Northern
Dynasty has hired |ocals, used | ocal busi nesses, shar ed
information fromstudi es, and has been a good nei ghbor.

2:25:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the road fromthe mne all the way
to Pedro Bay exists.

M5. REIMERS said it is only proposed. She said she has flown
with Northern Dynasty so she can be part of the process. She
said the conpany has done studies on fish and pl ants.

2:27: 00 PM

El LEEN ZAl SER, Anchorage, Al aska, said she supports the mning
industry and grew up placer mning. She noted that when she
first heard about the Pebble mne she was excited, but now she
is skeptical. She said Northern Dynasty doesn't seemto have a
track record, and she urged the commttee to err on the side of
caution. She said often the concern cones after the problem

She said she does not have a direct economic interest in the
project but would be affected if a catastrophe occurred.

2:29:43 PM

ELEANOR JOHNSON, Teacher, said she is originally from Nondalton
and there are 16 siblings in her famly and all but two left
Nondal ton for enploynent opportunities. There are a handful of
jobs but they are already filled, and many are seasonal, she
not ed. She said she left at age 12 to go to school, and that
"shouldn't have to be." She said she has still managed to hang
on to her subsistence lifestyle, never mssing a year of
subsi stence activities. She asked if the resolution nmeans that

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 15- February 13, 2006



the current process is not adequate and why not just neke the
process better. She also asked who is going to pay for "this.”
She said the legislature is not supposed to look at specific
proj ects. “"Your job is to take care of all of the citizens of
the State of Al aska." She said she didn't think she nor her
children should have to | eave hone to pursue a |iving.

2:33: 04 PM

M5. JOHNSON said two of her siblings have jobs in Nondalton, but
there weren't jobs for "the rest of us." She noted that she
|l eft to go to high school

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if she went back to Nondalton and
then couldn't find work there, so had to | eave.

M5. JOHNSON said she taught elenentary school in Nondalton for
ten years without a teaching degree, and then she left again to
go back to school and got a job with the Anchorage school
district after getting a degree. She said she got married and
rai sed three daughters in Anchorage. She said she continued to
be involved in the village <corporation, but she is not
representing it today. Somet hing disturbing is going on, she
said, and she doesn't like it. She said people should not be
governed by the person with the | argest bank account.

2:35:15 PM

MARTHA ANELON said she lives in Iliama and is enployed by a
joint venture of the Calista Corporation and the Iliama
Devel opnment Corporation called Iliama Pebble Devel opnment whose

client is Northern Dynasty. She is the local hire coordinator,
and she has seen all the studies Northern Dynasty has done on

t he environnent. She noted that Northern Dynasty asks for help
from local people, and working with Northern Dynasty provides
people with skills. It is unique for a conpany to cone in and
hire people fromvillages |like Togiak, she said, and fly themin
to Iliamma and provide food and housing during their shifts.
They go back to Togiak on their tinme off, she said. "Were else
do you get that in rural Al aska?" She said as the local hire

coordi nator she pushes for local hire. She said |ast season she
had two | ocal people in the office and this season, there wll
be three | ocal positions and one position is a bookkeeper.

REPRESENTATI VE CARL MOSES, Al aska State Legislature, said five

or six years ago the legislature appropriated a |arge sum of
noney for the Nondalton bridge, which has been held up by a

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 16- February 13, 2006



billionaire, and he has been told that the people of Nondalton
don't want the bridge, and that is hard to believe.

M5. ANELON said she doesn't know, but she think people want the
bridge to lower the price of gas, "and you would not believe the
nunber of people who have died...crossing over in the spring and
even in winter."

2:39: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said two people died there |ast year.
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if people are divided on the bridge.

MS. ANELON sai d she does not know.

2:40: 24 PM

M5. JOHNSON said she didn't think the notion of people being
against the bridge was "a true picture.” She said it doesn't
take much to change soneone's m nd. At sone point the tribal

council was told that Northern Dynasty was going to use the
bridge, but that is not true as far as she knows, but sone vocal
peopl e spread that runor. She said six years ago there was a
unani rous show of hands for the bridge when the three
communities were all t oget her with the Departnent of
Transportation & Public Facilities. Her nephew died in that
river, and many lives have been lost. M. Gllamfiles lawsuits
agai nst the bridge because it interferes with his scenic view.

2:42: 49 PM

DAN OBERLATZ, Omner, Al aska Al pine Adventures, said his conpany
is a very small adventure travel conpany, and that he is the
bl onde-hair, white guy nentioned in previous testinony. He has
live on Lake Clark for 11 years and he understands the cash
econony. He said he owes M. Alsworth $1,500 for oil for his
oi | tank. He said he is passionate about the Lake Cark and
Katnai area; it is one of the world s nost perfect ecosystens
and home to the world s |argest sockeye salnmon fishery and the
Mul chat na cari bou herd. It has trenendous value to Al askans,
and there is a lot at stake. He noted the growing tourism
econony and said local hire needs to be addressed, but he
opposes risking the tourism industry in favor of a |arge open
pit mne. He said of the two conpeting resources, ecological
diversity and the ore deposit, one will go at the expense of the
ot her. He said that is why Northern Dynasty owes Al askans the

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -17- February 13, 2006



assurance that it is not going to have an accident. He supports
HCR 29 in order to scrutinize a project that is unprecedented in
si ze and scope.

2:45: 42 PM

CO CHAIR RAMRAS said the conmttee now has a flow chart from DNR
showing the large mne permtting process next to the |land
pl anni ng process that HCR 29 gener at es.

2:48: 00 PM

MR. FOGELS said DNR first reviews the mne application, and then
the land planning process would start wth the step of
identifying issues and holding public neetings. The neetings
woul d be conbi ned, he said, but DNR has never done this process
before so it is the best guess on how it would be intertw ned

with the large mne permt process. The issues would be
different for the large mne permtting process, which my be
very specific to the design of the project, |ike the soundness
of tailings facilities. The land planning process nmay have
different issues, but the data collection would be done under
the permtting process. Both  docunents wll devel op

alternatives regarding where the mine is or where access is, and
the | and pl anning process woul d consider broader issues |ike how
DNR woul d manage the land surrounding the mne. There would be
a series of public neetings, concurrently, and then DNR would
develop a final plan or a final EIS He said sonetines there
are public nmeetings at that point depending on the |level of
controversy. He said the next step includes the appeals
process, and then the final decision is made on inplenenting a
permt and inplenenting a | and use pl an.

2:52: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about the difference between the
permtting issues and the | and plan issues.

MR. FOCELS said the land plan could affect the mne plan, but it
woul d be broader and would take into account sone of the
surroundi ng |and uses. He noted that the land plan typically
woul dn't get into the level of detail of the mne's tailing
pond, for exanple, but may provide guidance for where a tailings
pond could be sited.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 18- February 13, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if those things, like the |ocation
of the tailings ponds, are considered in the alternatives during
the permtting process.

MR. FOGELS said yes; that would be a clear duplication.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the land planning process would
oversee the construction of the mne and worker safety and
whet her the m ne was structurally sound.

MR. FOCGELS said that process would be strictly wunder the
permtting process.

2:55: 38 PM

CO CHAIR RAMRAS said in California there is a coastal conmm ssion
that considers view sheds and trails, and he asked if the permt
process deals with the mne itself and the land plan |ooks at
the environnmental inpact on the greater area and at some of the
nor e i ntangi bl e aspects.

MR. MYLIUS said that is a good way to describe it. Normally the
| and planning process would deal with nore specific items |ike
where the mne, road, or tailing pond could be, but those issues
will already be dealt with through the large mne project, "so
the planning process doesn't really add anything to those kinds
of decisions, but it could deal with some of the nore aesthetic
concerns or inpacts on adjacent |and uses, or things that are
not quite so tied to the actual devel opnent of the mne site, or
are not so technical."

CO CHAI R RAMRAS asked if the application has been submtted.

MR. MYLIUS said it will probably be submtted a year from now at
the earliest.

CO CHAIR RAMRAS asked if the land planning process would begin
concurrently with the EI'S process, bl ending the neetings.

MR. MYLIUS said that would be DNR s intention, but it has never
done the two processes together.

CO CHAI R RAMRAS suggested that the resolution action would begin
during scoping and public neetings, and at that tinme DNR would
assess "softer issues" affiliated with the greater use of the
ar ea. "Presumably nore people and other resources would be
used, and although a lot of the data would be shared, you would

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -19- February 13, 2006



generate two reports.” He asked if the reports would be
finalized at the sanme tine.

3:00: 29 PM

MR, MYLIUS said the intention would be to wap them both up at
the same tinme. He said the large mne process would take | onger
with its detailed analysis, but the goal would be to keep them
t oget her because the outcone of one may affect the other.

CO CHAIR RAMRAS said if HCR 29 noved, it would be a $400, 000
report on the softer issues surrounding the mne and possibly
satisfy sone of the concerns that were expressed by both sides
t oday. It would be an augnentation to the permtting process
he surm sed.

MR. MYLIUS said that is a fair assessnent.

3:02: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the mne permt process would fully

include the inpacts on fisheries, wldlife, subsistence and
such.

MR. FOGELS said the large mne permt would include all those
and nore, including socio-economc inpacts and air quality.

3:03:10 PM
[ HCR 29 was hel d over.]
ADJ OURNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Comm ttee neeting was adjourned at 3:03 PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 20- February 13, 2006



